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This brief history of Crossley-Hunter
has been compiled by Aleta(Dance)Sweet.
We regret that it is far from complete.
Our apologies to the families,who are
not written up,becsuse information was
not mede aveileble.

Our gratitude to :- Mr.James Appleford,
Mrs.G.L.Ackert (Ann Smith)Miss Sarah
Ackert Mr.and Mrs.Roy Learn(Stella lio.
Gregor)lMr.and Mrs.Roy lic.Gregor(Florence
Finch),Mr.Robert J.Ferguson and lMarie
FPerguson and Mrs,.Ed.loroughan(Bertha
Evert),who furnished us with much of

the data.

C.d.(D)S.

Compiled in the year 1950,
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CROSSLEY-HUNTER.

Crossley-Hunter is not a village or even a near village.It is merely
a cross roads,with a Upited church on one corner and a public school
on another corner.Nevertheless the neighbourhood is so rich in histor-
ical interest,that those living in the immediate neighbourhood,sre
proud to be classed as residents of Crossley-Hunter,
Geographically,the heart of the community lies on the ninth concession
of South Dorchester,where the west quarter road erosses it,The commn-
ity itself extends,probasbly s mile and a2 half to east and westjalso to
the north and south to the eighth and tenth-concessions,

So fer as can be learmed,this area,at the time when the first settlers
came, in the early '30's of last century,was = wilderness,with no humen
inhebitents,

Mach earlier than this date,even prior to 1640,it is known that this
tract of land,from Niagare River to Detroit was well settled with a
tribe of Indians,known as the Neutrals.Excavations and old ruins give
definite evidence that they lived in villeges.

At that time,Northern Ontario with Midlend ss its centre,was the home
of the Huron Indians.Upper New York %EES was settled by Iroquois.The
outlet for the Huron fur trade was et lontreal,while the outlet for the
Iroquois fur trade was New York.In order to secure the monopoly of the
fur trade in the west,the Iroquois,in I640,came over in large numbers,
and ruthlessly exterminated the tribe of Neutrals,who hed been friendly

to the Hurons,
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The few,who escaped alive,fled into Michigan and even farther west.
Their purpose accomplished,the Iroquois returned to their homes in New
york State and with the exception of an occasional hunter,no hummn being
lived in this erea,until after the Americen Revélution,when a few United
Empire Loyalists drifted in and made homes for themselves.Although it

is estimated that between forty and fifty thousand loyalists sought re-
fuge in Ceanedes,most of them went to Eastern Ceneda.Comparatively few
came to these parts,because it was a vast and discoursging widerness,
Toward the end of the eighteenth century,under Governor Simcoe,serious
considerastion wes given to colonization.Shiploads of immigrants were
brought over and able Noblemen from the British Isles were entrusted
with the administration of the young colonies,

Col.Thomas Talbot hed charge of 540,000 acres along Lake Erie,spread
over what is now twenty-eight townships,including South Dorchester.
Following the Nepoleonic wars, just at that time,dire poverty and wide
spread ummploymnt_ in the old countries,provided stimulus for immigrat-
ionfrom England and Scotland,to Cenada,on a large scale.

About that time also a potato famine in Irelend cut its population by

a half,so thet meny Irish settless came also.

During the Nepoleonic wars,England's lumber trade with Scandinavian
countries had been cut off and England had developed a hige lumber trade
with Canada.Hence vessels that went from Canada,bearing csergoes of lumber,
returned loaded with courageous immigreants - our ancestors,who pioneered

this srea,amid unspeaksble hardships and privations,.
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Chapter II - The Name.
Although this settlement dates back to the early 30's of the last
centu.ry,it ha'd no special name,until & large red brick house, just
north of the corners,now owned by George Abell,was built by james

Ballsh.

This immemse house wes three yesrs in the building and was a reel

show place in those times.The roof is of black slate and inleid in the
west roof,in octagonsl blocks of red slate abe the words - Maple Leaf
Farm - 1885,

About this time,the settlers had made arrangements to get regular mail
into their meighbourhood,by meeting a stege cosch et Lyons,three miles
and e half east,which made regular trips between the towns of Aylmer
and Dorchester.Obviously the meighbourhood had to have a name,so Maple
leaf Fost Office was chosen,

James lieikle,who then owned the farm,now owned by Joe Leslie,used to
drive to Lyond,get the liaple i.eaf mail and bring it to his home.Often
it would lie there for days,before anyone ¢laimed it,as people received
little mail then; and were often surprised when a neighbour,in passing,
would shout in - "Jim Meikle told me to tell you that he hes a letter

for you."
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Chapter III - The Church,

On the first corner,east of Crossley-Hunter,lived Wilson lMc,.Creadie,
whose wife was a sister to the late Dr.H.T.Crossley ; snd in 1890,
chiefly through the isfluence of lir.end Mrs.Mc.Cresdie,the famed
evangelists - Crossley and Hunter conducted an evengelistic campaign
in the woods, just south of the main corners.@it was well organized
end well oconducted.Jennie Stewart,a talented musician of the cormun-
ity sccompenied the singing on a small reed orgen.A deeply stirred
cormunity with keen religious swekening,wes the result.

Before this time,families hed sttended s Methodist church in ILyons,
a Disciple church at ilapleton and a Presbyterian church at Belmont,
Immediately following the evengelistic meetings,the need for a commun-

ity plece of worship was reecognized and promptly built,

Since it was the outcome of the Crossley - Hunter revival,it seemed
natursl to neme it the Crossley - Hunter lMethodist church.

The former:name ‘lMaple Leef' gradually died out.Particularly so,whem
@ rursl msil delivery route was established from Belmont,which served

this entire commnity,dsilye. F
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So now the church,the school and the entire community bear the neme -
Crossley-Hunter,

Robert Brown and his wife came from Glasgow,Scotland in I1843.They went 'Rober‘f
first to St.Thomaes.At that time,St.Thomas was a very small village,The o
Talbot settlement was already pretty well teken up in the vicinity of St.
Thomes,so meking his way north and east,through well nigh impenetrable
forest,Robert Brown secured a 200 acre tract of land,on the corner of which
the Crossley-Hunter church now stands,The land upon which to build the
church having been given for the purpose by Robert Brown's son Henry,

who lived on the farm at the time of its erection,

The Crossley-Hunter church has slways been an outside appointment of
whateber charge,Bonference has seen fit to link it up with.It has been in
turn attached to Lyons,Sperta,Yarmouth Centre end at the present time,is
pert of the Springfield charge.

On two occesions,it has been linked with two other small churches,under a
student minister.On one other occasion,when there was a growing insclinstion
to close up smgll rural churches and force families to attend the larger
centres,Crossley-Hunter was left without = minister,The local people didnt
take kindly to this and after careful deliberation,erranged with Rev.John
Veale,a retired llethodist minister,living at Dorchester,to come on Sundays
for one service and to to look after funerals and weddings,when needed.
This srrangment proved very satisfactory for a number of years.

When the Conference was convinced that Crossley-Hunter church intended to
remein in sction,it took séeps to fit her into the set-up agein,

Some of the finest ministers of our church,have in their student days,
served this charge, Namely :- The Late Rev.Burton Robimson,Dr.A.l.Stuart,

the late Rev.E Matthews,Rev.Cleyton Searle,Rev.Steven lathers,
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In I89I,when the Crossley-Hunter church opened,it was part of the Lyons
cirouit.Rev.James Kennedy was the minister.The following yeer,Rev.S.G.
Staples beceme the minister,Then Rev.Robert Thompson,followed by Rev.
C.P.Wells and later Rev.S.C.Edmnds,

Then the Crossley-Hunter church was placed under the superintendency of
‘Sparta,with Rev S.R.Mc.Vittie as senior pastor,sssisted first but Rev,
Burton Robinson and later by Rev W.B.Midford.

Next it was linked up with the Orwell church =nd s preaching appoint-
ment in the Kingsmill school housey; and was served by the following :-
The late Rev.E.uatthews,Rev.James Foster and Dr .A.l.Stuart.

At this point Crossley<Hunter was left unprovided with a minister,héping
that its members would settle themselves among surrounding congregations
As has been stated,Rev.John Vesle filled in the breach @mtil I914,when
Crossley-Hunter church was asgain attached to Lyons,under the féllowing
ministers:- The late Rev,Joseph Jones, Rev,G.W.Butt,Rev.J.E.Cook,
Rev.Clayton Sesrle,Rev,T.C.7ilkinson,Dr.Sheldon Bartlet(M.D.}Rev.H.M.
Wright ,Rev.R.R.Connor,Rev.A.i.Grant and Rev,.R.W.Langdon,

In 1929,this church was handed over to Yarmouth Centre,under the follow=-
ing ministers :- Rev W.A.,Finlasy,Rev.D.A.Armstrong,Rev.A.C.orhouse and
Rev.C.W.ibrrow.

In 1944 the next move came.This time to Springfield with Rev.J.T.White
,thenRev.Chas Vickerson and Rev.R.C.Copelsnd.

When the church was opened in I89I,MissgSarah Ackert was the first organ-
ist and served in that cepscity,continuocusly with great faithfulness for
forty-seven years,when she was succeeded by Hazel Learn.

The members of the first choir were:- G.L.Ackert,inn Smith,Wilbur Smith,

Bristol Smith,Clara Smith,Almeds Smith,Hiram Pettit,Esther Pettit.

..‘l...........'....‘
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Call to Vorship
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Doxology
Invecation
Hvan 402
Seripture

Prayer

pringfield Cheir

TREARY SIRVICE
i United Chuarch
3s 1964 2:30 P.lM,

Histoery of the Chureh by lr. Valter !atthews

Offering
Offertory

Springfigid Choir
Greetings from Slgin Tresbytery by the
Chaiyman, Rev. Vm., Shaver of Dutlton

Hymn 164

Tnirvoduction of Guest speaksr by Rev, Geo. A, Shields
Sermon ~ Rev, Crosaiey Hunter 3B.L,, D.D,

Dynn 166

Benediotion ~ Tir, Crossley Hunter

Irechytery and the Springfield United Chmroh Cheir.

Students who egerved Crossley Munter Unived Church vere:

HQ‘V.,-,
Rev,
Hev,
Rev,
RWQ
nev,

The lLete Rev: Duriton Nobinson

Dru .A.u I:d

stuart

Rev. La lattheus
Rev, Clgyton Searle
Liev, 3teven ilathers

hoe nsmes of former ministers are:

Rev, S¢ Ho Vittie from Sparta sbout 1910

John Veale till 1912
Jogeph Jones

o Vo Butt

Cools

Clayton Searis

Qs C» VAlkinson

Dro. sheldon Bartlett

Heve
R“o
Beve
Rev,

B, 1l VWright
Py R, Conmor
A, M, Grant

R, V. Langdon

Rav,
Rev,
Hev,
Rev,
Rev,
Bav,
Rev,
Rev,
Rev,
Re?n
RB’? )

From larch to July iir. Joha Browr: snd Mr,

Vith gratitude to all
(rossley Funter United Church
Trusteen, Tlders and Stewyards

W A, Finlay 192¢
D, 4¢ Ammstrong
Ao, €5 loorehouse
Co Hr, lorrow

Jo Ts White
Charles Vickerson
R. C, Copeland
I1a Go Cock

Gee, A, Shields
Go G. Heffolfinger
Jean Toneldson
Don Tarscns

———
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Chapter IV - The School.

( No one will ever know how much we owe to those pioneers for their ambition
and insistence that their children be edikceted.How they accomplished it,
with so few facilities,in the face of what seemed to be unsurmountable
obstacles,ig hard to see,
David In the case of David Wellington Finch,who came from New York State,in 1839,
Wellington

Fineh, settling first south of liapleton,where Sam Garten now lives,but movéng the
following year to the cormer north of Crossley-Hunter,now the Peter Drabic
fam,There were thirteen children in this femily,all of whom grew up.

Before there was any school,for them to attend,the two edefit children were
school age.Their parents paid a fee for each child,to a teacher who came to
their home to give them their lessons.

There is mo record that this was a common practice,but in all probabilit-
ies,other families,who had children employed the same tescher.Even after a
school was built with teachers who could end did cerry pupils slong in their
studies,farther then High School Entrance requirements,numbeérs of these
young people were sent away to College,to take a business course,to become
teachers end to study medicine,Dr.Jim Me.Gregor in those days became s grad-
uate of Ann Arbor iichigan.Dr.Dan Ferguson,an uncle of Robert,and Neil Ferg-
uson slso became a doctor.

The first school was built of logs,in I860 on the farm of John Learn,s mile
west of the present school.Ruth Belchor was the first teacher.d lr.Widmore s
succeeded her and remsined for three yesrs.,during which time ,he was not only
teacher,but janitor as well.At night,he slept in e bunk,built in the wall

at the back of the school room.

Sunday school was also held in this school.’Par® Deacon was superintendent,.
( The Deacons lived on the next ferm west of the John Leamm farm.Both of

these farms were long narrow fifty acre strips,the two strips now have
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become the west part of the ferm owned by George gennett.

The Deacon Farm buildings were in a little hollow and to this day,older res-
idents know that spot as 'Deacon's Hollow'.

4 son of '"Par' Deacon took the farm,now owned by Alfred Connor and & daughter
married Roy Learn's grandfather,George Learn about I856.

In that time,when Pioneer commnities were fast coming to life,the demand for
a better schbol made itself felt,and a struoture of whife brick was built down
at the four corners opposite the church,in I880.

The acre of ground” upon which to build it,wes purchased from George Lesrn,for
$ I00.,00,The origimal sgreement of sale of this property is an interesting
possession of Roy Learn,It contains a clause,that if this land cesses to be
school properyy,it reverts to the originel farm,The trustees,whose signatures
are on this document sre :- Andrew Roberts,George Appleford,George Pettit.
Teachers who teught in this school were :- George Emery,Harvey lMann,Fisher
Ferguson,Emily lic.Creadie,Duncen Taylor,Alfred Buck,Ernie Kilmer,George Young,
Violet lic.Gregor,Bessie Crawford,lliss Cron,George Smith,Miss Todd,liarths Gresse
William Ackhard,L.Thompson,liaggie Deacon,lir.Raple je,Tena Noble,Herbert Branion,
Leura Simpson,iiss Coleman,lliss #bbott,Isabel Mitten,

The new school became a real commnity centre.Sundsy School was held in it,
During the year,following the revival meetings while the church was under con-
struction,regular church services were hedd in it conducted by Rev,Heil Wood.
Another highly beneficial project,one whose influence is felt to this dsy,
was a8 singing school.A competent instructor was engaged ;1:1 in the long winter
evenings,everyone,who could sing,came to singing school.Each one brought a
candle,whiclj was thdonly way to light the room.

This school,elthough a vast improvement on the first one,eventuelly had its

dey.In I9II it wes torn down and a modern new red brick one erected on the

el
-

e
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4 1910 picture of Cressley Hunter Schoel

®eacher - Miss Isebel litten

Me jv il

Front row - Geerge Jenkins,Albert Ashton, (?) Jenkins,saren Reberts,
(?) Johnsen,Lily Betterley,Grace Appleford, (?) Bagnall,Fred
Grawburg.

204 - (?) Jenkins, Heary Legg,Jim Jenkins,Annie Grawburg,

3rd - Clarence Rogers,Thurman Legg,Clare Appleferd,Allem Grawburg,
dqrjorie Ackert,Irene Betterley,laurs Jenkins ,Sarsh Grawburg,
Beatrice ashton.

4th - Adrian Ashton,Pearl Betterley,lMary Grawburg,Theresa Reberts,

Ethel Betterley,Ruby Wright, (?) Bagnsll.
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same site,

The trustees at the time were :- G.L.Ackert, and lester Joe Jenkins,

James Appleford and Arthur livore,.

The *.;eachera who have served the present school are :-

- Exme Cline,Ells Cline,Nina Clerk,iiss Reid,Jeen Harkness,Eva Teylor,Eva Legg,
Marion Mc.Intyre,Eleatha Davidson,Jane Taylor,iyrtle Brown,Audrey Furse,
Afudrey Gent,Nancy Little,lirs.Rred Brown,Ardeth (Cline)Millard.

In the esrly deys e lady teacher got a salary of from§200,00 to $300.00
A man tescher might be sble to get as high as § 400,00.At the turn of the
century the status of teaching and 2180 ecomomic conditions hed improved
to the extent thst salaries rose,ranging from § 500,00 to $800.,00.
Following the World wer #I,they rose as high as $I000.,00 During the de-
pression in the 30's, salaries went sway down with everything else,but
following the world war #2 they rose sharply.In I950 the teacher here

received $2,000.,00
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Chapter V « The Catfish Creek,

One of the north branches of the Catfish Creek crosses the ninth concess-
ion, just east of Cwossley-Hunter and again crosses the quarter roasd,s
little south of it.Its course is so winding thet it touches practicslly
every ferm in the neighbourhood.Its winding course with its wooded flats,
adds beauty =nd picturesqueness to the countryside.

Aside from thet,it has been of high value ecomomically,as a naturel
dreinege system and as & water supply.Some of the farmers to this day

depend upon the creeek for watering their stock.

: In the spring,as soon &s
| the ice goes out,swarms of
suckers come up from the

lake to spawn.Farmers have,

every year,gone out with
‘ lanterns,at night,and pick-

ed these very delicious fish

off the rapids.Even now,
although our diet is not limited es it was in the old days,they are & real
treat.In the old dsys when their diet was very limited,they were not only e
treat but highly beneficial to the gemersl health,.

lbost of the year,it is quite & harmless little stre=sm, but in a spring freshet
or a flood,it has et times become so turbulent as to be terrifying.

In 1I893,heavy snow had come esrly in December.On December IS5th,Jennie Ferg-
uson,who was teaching at Martin's school,east of Lyons,held her Christmas
@ntertainment.Several days before it,the weather became very mild,with
thawing and heavy rasins.The roads were neither suiteble for buggies or
cutters.The Ferguson family went to Jennie's Intertsinment,veriously

equipped.irs,.Ferguson and her two aoné.Robert,ﬁfteen years old and
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